CITY OF BOULDER CITY

401 California Avenue
Boulder City, NV 89005
www.bcnv.org

August 10, 2021

City of Boulder City
RFP 2021-03 Tract 350
Addendum No. 1

The deadline for questions for this proposal was 12:00 p.m., Monday August 9, 2021.
The following are the questions that we received via email, at the Site Visit. In NGEM,
and answers to those questions. A copy of this addendum must be signed and returned
with your proposal.

Question 1. Are the alternate zoning and density options limited to the three zoning
conditions (R1-15, R1-10 and R1-7) that are specified under section 5 of the RFP?
Answer: No, the respondent may propose any zoning classification that they choose.
The respondent may also propose new zoning classifications that do not exist in the
Boulder City Code. If a new class is proposed, the respondent should also provide
sample regulatory text to accompany the unique new class. The current zoning
conditions (R1-15, -10, and -7) were provided by way of information as to existing
conditions.

Question 2. What is the yearly growth restriction and how does that trickle down to
builders? Answer: The City’s growth control ordinance limits the maximum number of
building permits issued for new dwelling construction to 120 per year. That limit further
restricts the maximum number of building permits that can be issued per development
to 30 per year. Same restriction applies to multiple unit dwelling types (i.e., duplex,
triplex, apartment, condo, etc). The growth control ordinance can be found at:

https://library.municode.com/nv/boulder city/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=COOR

TIT11Z0SU CH41COGRMAPL.

Question 3. What are the yearly permit restrictions, if any? Are those restrictions per
builder, or per product line? Answer: Each development is entitled to thirty growth
control allotments per year. They are restricted to the development and not to the
builder or product line.

Question 4. Are the future year permit reservations considered place holders to secure
the maximum allotments per year, or are they additional allotments? Answer: The future
year allotments count against that construction years’ allotment total. For example, if
you received an allotment reservation of 30 units for the construction year that begins
on July 1, 2023, that would reduce the total number of available allotments that could be
secured by others for that construction year by thirty, leaving 90 allotments available.
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Question 5. Should a formal Letter of Intent be included in the proposal package?
Answer: A letter of Intent is not required. The submittal of a response to the RFP
makes the respondents intent clear.

Question 6. Does the City have any restrictions and/or reservations regarding
community sales pricing, RV parking options, or anything in particular that could affect
the City’s growth control plan? Answer: No, the City does not have any restrictions
regarding community sales pricing. RV Parking Options would have to comply with the
underlying zoning requirements (i.e,, building setbacks, height, etc). There are no other
restrictions that could affect the City’s growth control plan.

Question 7. How long does it take to obtain the necessary entitlements (permit and
engineering approvals) for the construction of the subdivision? Answer: Difficult
question to answer without seeing the initial submittal of plans and engineering.
Historically it has depended on the amount of revisions that are required before the plan
is approved. Could be as short as 90 days or as long as a year. Quality, accurate and
code compliant submittals are reviewed and approved more rapidly than Vague,
incomplete, inaccurate and non-code compliant submittals.

Question 8. Are there plans available for inspection for the design and engineering for
the stormwater improvements for Bristlecone? Answer: Yes. They are provided with
this update. Note: The stormwater improvements are part of a larger improvement plan
set for Bristlecone and Clubhouse Drive. The roadway design plans may be used as a
reference for final design, but are not to be considered the only possible design of the
street improvements (i.e., the design shows street medians — medians are an option but
not a requirement).

Question 9. How big (acres) of a park is the City requesting for the site? Answer: The
size of the park(s) are at the discretion of the respondent, including their design, layout,
amenities offered, etc. By way of example only, the current project under development
(Boulder Hills Estates), is provided three small parks by using lands that are otherwise
too small for individual lots or otherwise created by unique road layouts, with each park
having different amenities and landscape materials.

Question 10. Are there specific amenities desired for the City park(s)? Answer: The
City has not identified specific required amenities to be included within the park(s). The
design, layout, and provided amenities are at the discretion of the respondent. The
intent of the parks is to provide public spaces for this development and not for a larger
population.

Question 11. Could the City make available the soils study and a Phase | and Phase |l

environmental report? Answer: The City has not had a soils study prepared, nor a
Phase I or Phase environmental study conducted for this parcel.
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Question 12. Would it be possible to get copies of the sample “what if’ layouts the City
has prepared for in-house use? Answer: The “what if’ layout scenarios are not
engineered drawings and were prepared for internal use to identify potential issues that
could arise with the development of the parcel. For example, the “what if’ scenarios
assisted city staff in determining that there were challenges for public street placements
if a single zoning class was applied to the entire parcel. As such, the drawings are
internal draft materials. Respondents may make an appointment to visit the City Offices
fo view the draft documents if they so desire. They will need to work with the
Purchasing Manager, Paul Sikora, 702-293-9246 to view them.

Question 13. Can the city make available all engineering studies prepared for the site
(i.e., drainage, dry utility analysis, water network, sewer)? Answer: The Cily has not
conducted any studies of Tract 350 and is not in possession of any reports.

Question 14. Can we get a copy of the sign-in roster from the Pre-Proposal Meeting?
Answer: Yes, it is attached to this Addendum.

Question 15: Will CAD linework or a survey boundary be provided for the parcel in
question? Answer: The City, while the owner of the parcel, did not prepare the survey or
parcel map for Tract 350. The City used the services of Radig Engineering, who retains
the original CAD files.

Question 16: Will the City provide a copy of their (land sales) contract verbiage prior to
the RFP closing date? Answer: The City uses a standard form land sales agreement for
property sales, with each one being modified to the unique properties. It is anticipated
that the successful respondent(s) will negotiate a sales contract, including any phased
take downs, with the City.

Question 17: RFP Item #11 states, “the names of the responding companies will be
available for review. Respondents will only be able to view their own proposal
document once unsealed.” |If this is a public bid, why would all proposals not be
considered public information at the time of bid opening? Answer: You are correct, all
bid documents become a public record upon bid opening. However, as you noted,
there are limitations with the Nevada Government Electronic Marketplace for which the
City has no control. All RFP documents will be available for inspection at City Hall in
the Finance Department following the bid opening.

Question 18: Per RFP Item #19, Termination for Convenience, in the event the City
chooses to cancel the Contract, can the respondent receive compensation for employee
time spent working toward the Contract? Answer: No

Question 19: Per RFP Item #21, each Respondent is to list any exceptions to
specifications and attach it to its Proposal. Are the “specifications” you are referring to
the Boulder City Code of Ordinances, specifically Title 11, “Zoning and Subdivisions”
and are the “exceptions” you are referring to waivers that will be requested? Answer:
The specifications include all regulatory laws and requirements for which the City has
control over the application of such requirement. In addition to Title 11, Zoning and
Subdivisions, the specifications also include the adopted street standards as published



by the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada, and the Uniform
Building Codes (including the Southern Nevada Amendments).

Question 20: Does the verbiage in RFP Item #24 conflict with ltem #11 in that the
City's records are Public Records. Are proposals considered “Public Records”?
Answer: The Proposals are a public record and will be made available for public
inspection at City Offices. Item #11 is referring to the ability to view items on the
Nevada Government Electronic Marketplace and the restrictions that system places on
submitted items. The City does not have the ability to make documents viewable on
that system once a bid is opened. However, the City will make them available as soon
as practicable after the RFP opening at the City offices.

Question 21: Can (the) City council choose to enter into a Purchase and Sale
Agreement with multiple bidders? Answer: Yes, the RFP is structured as such that the
City Council could choose to award the RFP to multiple respondents, depending upon
their proposals. For example, it is possible one respondent may only want a portion of
Tract 350, and a separate respondent may express interest in only a different part of the
Tract.

Question 22: Can (the) City Council choose to enter into a Purchase and Sale
Agreement with one bidder using aspects from another developer's proposal? Answer:
The terms and conditions of the sales contract result from negotiations between the City
and the chosen respondent(s). As with any negotiated contract, the components may
differ from the original proposal if all parties agree to the resultant terms.

Question 23: Can the gross acreage of the parcel(s) including the adjacent ¥ streets
for sale be used to calculate the zoning density? Answer: No.

Question 24: In the RFP Scope of Work Section 4.1.2.1, what fees will the
Respondent pay to establish the SID, and how can the Respondent calculate a rate IF
an SID is required to be established? Answer: The City is unable to answer this
question at this time, and is researching the matter further.

Question 25: In the RFP Scope of Work Section 5, the Respondent may propose
alternate zoning and density, but Section 9.3 states that the City “will not approve:
variances to the required subdivision standards. If there is no currently adopted zoning
classification and standard street profile, how is the Respondent to propose new zoning
and street profiles if the City will not approve these variances? Answer: The purpose of
having the respondent propose new zoning classification regulatory language and/or
street profiles is to allow the City to consider the alternative and subsequently adopt the
draft language as a new standard — thus not requiring a variance from existing
standards, as the newly adopted standard(s) would permit the proposed deviation as an
operation of law. For example, the city does not have a zoning classification that would
allow 6,000 square foot lots. Without a proposed zoning text to go with the respondents
submittal, the City would then have to be asked to issue variances from our standard
7,000 square foot Ilot requirement. However, if the respondent provided a proposed
new zoning classification (for this example, an R1-6) that allowed for 6,000 square foot



lots that specified building setbacks, etc and the City adopted that new zoning class,
then the development would not require variances.

Question 26: In Scope of Work Section Ill, Selection Process, who will make up the
Selection Committee? Answer: The Selection Committee will be members of the
Community Development Department, Public Works Department, Public Utilities
Department, and Finance Department, generally 5-7 members total. The City Manager
may also participate at his discretion.

Question 27: In Scope of Work Section IV, Evaluation Factors, what is the Fee
Structure (50 points)? Answer: The Fee Structure is the proposed method of
compensation to the City for the purchase of the land, including the phased take down
structure and any additional compensation for a delayed take down, etc.

fod$

Paul Sikora
Purchasing Manager

By signing below, | indicate | have received Addendum No. 1 for RFP 2021-03 Tract
350 and | acknowledge all requirements of this addendum and will submit this signed
page with my quote.

LEGAL NAME OF FIRM

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE NAME (TYPE OR PRINT )

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE

TITLE TELEPHONE NUMBER

ADDRESS OF FIRM, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

E-MAIL ADDRESS:
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RFP 2021-03 Tract 350 Land Sale
Department FN

Pre- Proposal Meeting

Date: Jul 29, 2021

Time: 1230 hrs

Location: Boulder Creek Golf Course

ATTENDANCE LOG

NAME: j_—s_a% Sm‘«,ws
COMPANY: $Hcy Boole Hones
TELEPHONE: (‘7~n?,\' 824~ Gorf

E-MAIL ADDRESS: (Summers ® Sbhlv.com
NAME: 774,, F 4 q@ NI
COMPANY: Le,ss l%m..au/"//,w«/
TELEPHONE: 7297-2620 72307 7
E-MAIL ADDRESS: » o @la .dae,
NAME: Ksber /- Larris
COMPANY: SeC 4bsme

TELEPHONE:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

NAME: _(__)_e_“q:/e.k' /,-,.. N

COMPANY: SeC

TELEPHONE:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

NAME: Loupic DAcC<

COMPANY: NAcc 7T LL ey

TELEPHONE: /(“,J & 18 ERF¢C

E-MAIL ADDRESS: LAOACe LINdcr 3T.05

NAME: J3m ez < V@apd

COMPANY: sSptt

TELEPHONE: 10% 440 - %43 &

E-MAIL ADDRESS: | 69phe (@, Shhiy. CorV!

NAME: JOSEPH PofRELLY

COMPANY: KIMLEY - HogN

TELEPHONE: AT~ 7)) ~602-753(

E-MAIL ADDRESS! | 0@ny. pomm [ R
WL
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